New York State Office of Information Technology Services
RFP C000382 ITS Service Desk Support and End User Break-Fix Support Services
Questions and Answers
As of January 11, 2016
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Question 1:  
Vendor requests that the minimum qualifications listed in section 4.1 be modified as requested below to maximize competition for the State by including more capable vendors that would be forced to No-Bid this opportunity.  
The RFP currently reads: MANDATORY BIDDER ELIGIBILITY QUALIFICATIONS The following are the mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications that must be met by the Prime Contractor. If these requirements are not met, the State shall deem the Proposal as non-responsive and eliminate the Bidder from further consideration. Bidders (and their predecessor business Enterprises) must: 
1. Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to Public Sector Entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US. 
2. Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this RFP. 
3. Be registered with the NYS Department of State as an entity authorized to conduct business in New York State. 
Vendor suggests the following re-wording for item 1.   Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope within the continental US to meet ITS' requirements as set forth in this RFP. Another possible wording is: Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to either Public or Private Sector Entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US. 
Since Infrastructure Services, Helpdesk/Deskside Services, are fairly standard across industries and sectors, putting a focus on the Public Sector will needlessly eliminate some of the larger as well as capable companies from bidding on this deal.  Vendor does however support many customers in the private sector that well exceed the requirements as set forth in this RFP.  We ask that the State consider our request and make a decision on or before the Bidders Conference on January 8th so that we and other vendors have enough time to respond should the State make this change. As an additional item changing the time frame from ten (10) to five (5) years would also be more inclusive, but this is merely a suggestion having talked with several other large Global System Integrators. 
Answer 1:  
1/6/16:  Section 4.1 of the RFP is revised to read as follows:  
The following are the mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications that must be met by the Prime Contractor. If these requirements are not met, the State shall deem the Proposal as non-responsive and eliminate the Bidder from further consideration.  Bidders (and their predecessor business Enterprises) must:
1. Have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US.
1. Have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this RFP.
1. Have a minimum of three (3) years of experience providing services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to Public Sector Entities.
1. Be registered with the NYS Department of State as an entity authorized to conduct business in New York State.
Attachments 17 and 18 have been revised accordingly.
Question 2:  
Why are you not using the HBITS contract for this work?  
Answer 2: 
1/6/16:  This procurement seeks a vendor to provide a managed service.  The vendor must meet or exceed the Service Level requirements (SLRs) outlined in Section 3 of the RFP.  Vendor’s failure to meet or exceed the SLRs, as described in Table 3 – Service Level Requirements, will result in SLR Credits to ITS.  The Hourly-Based IT Services (HBITS) contract is incompatible with these requirements.
Question 3:  
Will you be using the HBITS contract in conjunction with this RFP? 
Answer 3:
1/6/16:  No. Any services procured through this RFP will not also be procured through HBITS.  
Question 4:  
What is your reasoning for 10 years of experience for the mandatory requirements? 
Answer 4:
1/6/16:  Section 4.1 of the RFP has been revised.  See answer to Question 1.   
Question 5:  
My company currently has several contractors working on HBITS providing Desk Support services under the Specialist title on that contract, will this contract cause the incumbents on HBITS to end their positions?
Answer 5:
1/6/16:  Any services procured through this RFP will not also be procured through HBITS.  
Question 6:  
Our largest client has 24k end users, located globally, but headquartered here in NYS (as are we).  They are a publicly traded company but not in the Public Sector.  Will either of these facts disqualify us from consideration.
Answer 6:
1/6/16: Section 4.1 of the RFP, as revised on 1/6/16, identifies the mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications that must be met by the Prime Contractor. If these requirements are not met, the State shall deem the Proposal as non-responsive and eliminate the Bidder from further consideration.  Based on the information provided, it does not appear that this vendor is eligible to bid as the prime contractor.  As a reminder, interested vendors may pursue subcontracting opportunities.  
Question 7:  
Will the answers provided in the Pre-Bid Conference on January 8 become part of the final contract?
Answer 7:   
1/6/16: During the Pre-Bid conference, ITS will make best efforts to answer questions received by the deadline for submission of pre-bid conference questions.  Any oral responses given by the State at the Pre-Bid Conference are unofficial and shall not be relied upon in the preparation of Bid Proposals unless confirmed in an official written response.  The State reserves the right to change any oral response previously given by the State at the Pre-Bid Conference in the official written response. Only formal clarifications and amendments to the RFP issued by ITS in official written responses will become part of the final contract.
Question 8:  
ITIL is not a compliance framework. Can ITS provide examples of ITIL Standards compliance certificates and issuing parties to which it refers?
Answer 8:  
[bookmark: _MailEndCompose]1/6/16: ITS agrees. Section 2.1, Key Service Element 3 of the RFP has been revised to read as follows:
3. Upon ITS request, Contractor will provide ITS with evidence of compliance with such ITIL Standards.
Question 9:  
Please explain the process with which ITS stock that contractor maintains will be replenished. (ie, will we be repairing swapped unit or ordering a replacement of swapped unit?  If repaired, who provides the parts?)
Answer 9:  
1/11/16: The vendor will replace the unit and return the broken equipment to ITS. For more information refer to section 2.2.2 key element 30.  
Question 10: 
During a PC swap, what is required for imaging, transferring data, software, and peripheral setup?
Answer 10: 
1/11/16: ITS will provide an imaged workstation. The vendor will be responsible for data transfer, software installs that are not part of standard image, and installing any necessary peripheral drivers.

Question 11: 
Who is responsible for the shipping costs associated with returning units to ITS and receiving inventory replenishments?
 Answer 11: 
1/11/16: The vendor is responsible for the cost of returning equipment to ITS. ITS is responsible for the cost of sending equipment to the vendor.

Question 12: 
Are large networked printers and MFP's expected to be swapped or repaired onsite?
Answer 12: 
1/11/16: The vendor will attempt to repair on site.
Question 13:  
Can ITS provide a listing of equipment that will be used to maintain adequate inventory of ITS provided replacement equipment?  This will help determine how much warehouse space will need to be allocated in each metropolitan area.
Answer 13: 
1/11/16: The best available information is located in the RFP Appendices, particularly Appendix O, Appendix T, and Appendix V.

Question 14: 
Would the State be willing to amend the language in Mandatory Criteria (as below) in order to enable more bidders to submit a proposal?                                Mandatory Criteria
Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to Public Sector Entities or Private Sector Organizations of more than 50,000 users within the continental US. 
Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this
 Answer 14: 
1/11/16:  The mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications have been revised.  See response to Question 1. 
Question 15:  
Bullet 3 in this section of the RFP states 'Upon ITS request, Contractor will provide ITS with a copy of Contractor’s then-current certificate of compliance with such ITIL Standards.'. Could the State please provide what it deems as an acceptable certificate of ITIL compliance.
Answer 15: 
1/11/16: See response to Question 8. 
Question 16:  
The example includes expected service levels.  Will the contract call out both expected and minimum % thresholds?
Answer 16: 
1/11/16: No, Expected Service Levels are identified in Section 3 of the RFP, particularly Table 3.  
Question 17:  	
Could you also provide a count of users and the monthly volume of tickets by each site.
Answer 17: 
1/11/16: The information cannot be provided by site.  
Question 18:  
The footnote states after-hours period includes Sat, Sun, holidays and after 5:00 PM.   However, the volume between 5:00 PM & 6:00 PM is substantial.   Do the same incident response/resolution and call waiting SLR's apply during core and non-core support hours?
Answer 18: 
1/11/16: Yes.  
Question 19:  
Is there a categorization breakdown of incident types?  i.e. can we see the types of issues that are driving incident tickets?  
Answer 19: 
	1/11/16: Yes, the top categories which are driving issues (in no particular order) are: 
· Password Resets
· Printers
· Monitors
· Internet Issues
· Software Issues
· Data not being accessible
· Network Slowness
· Account Access or Permissions
· VOIP Phone
· WebEx
· Mobile Device Broken
Question 20:  
Could you provide the existing and proposed SLRs for each Incident priority (P1 - P4)
Answer 20: 
1/11/16: SLRs remain the same regardless of Incident priority.
 Question 21:  
	What percentage of incidents are raised via phone, email, chat or via the portal?
Answer 21: 
	1/11/16: Approximate estimates are as follows:
· Phone 75% 
· Email 7%
· Self-Servcie18%
· Chat 0%. Chat is in its infancy
Question 22:  
	Do the same SLRs apply regardless of channel used to raise the incident?
Answer 22: 
1/11/16: The SLR for each channel is listed in Table 3.  

Question 23:  
	What percentage of incidents are resolved by 1st, 2nd, 3rd level support?
Answer 23: 
1/11/16: This information cannot be provided.  
Question 24:  
	What percentage of incidents are resolved via automation?
Answer 24: 
1/11/16: ITS has automation for some end user password resets, which are not logged as incidents.  The majority of incidents are not resolved via automation.  
 Question 25:  
What percentage of incidents can be user-resolved utilizing user facing knowledge base?
Answer 25: 
1/11/16: Currently the amount is minimal.  We believe this is an area the successful Bidder can improve upon.
Question 26:  
	What percentage of incidents come from VIPs?
Answer 26: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 27:  
Has there been any recent automation implementation to reduce ticket volume (e.g. automated password resets, user facing knowledge base, etc.)
Answer 27: 
1/11/16: Not recently.  
Question 28:  
Please clarify what version of ServiceNow is currently being used? Are there any plans to upgrade?  Who owns the ServiceNow platform?   
Answer 28: 
1/11/16: ITS provides the ServiceNow platform.  We are currently on FUJI.  Our intent is to remain not more than 1 version behind the newest release.  
 Question 29:  
Do any of the agencies require a dedicated Service Desk function or specialized skills?
Answer 29: 
1/11/16: No.
Question 30:  
Remote access setup and credentials - Could you provide information on what tools are being used now for this?
Answer 30: 
1/11/16: See RFP Section 2.1 Alert Monitoring, Key Service Element 22. 
 Question 31:  
Emergency Task Order Form and procedures:  Is there a current Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery plan in place?  Does it cover all agencies and locations?  
Answer 31: 
1/11/16: This is outside the scope of the RFP.
Question 32:  
	Can we get the current ratio of field staff to central service desk staff?  
Answer 32: 
1/11/16: Three Central Service Desk staff to one Field Staff.  
Question 33:  
In items 16-18 on the Calendar of Events table, the schedule indicates a 90 day start-up period and a 90 day stabilization period, creating a 180 day window between contract approval and beginning of Steady State. Based on this, is it the State's intention to request 54 months of Steady State for an overall deal term of 60 months or does the State request 60 months of Steady State for an overall deal term of 66 months?
Answer 33: 
1/11/16: The contract will be for a term of 60 months.
Question 34:  
Under "Alert Monitoring" will changes to the applicable monitoring tools be subject to Section 5.31. Process for Change Requests?    
Answer 34: 
1/11/16: ITS will provide the monitoring tools.  We don’t envision a significant variance which would warrant a Change Request.  
Question 35:  
Will changes to the Priority Sites be subject to Section 5.31, Process for Change Requests?
Answer 35: 
1/11/16: We don’t envision a significant variance to the number of Priority Sites which would warrant a Change Request.  
Question 36:  
Will NYS provide storage space for the NYS owned equipment, or is that to be provided by the Contractor?
Answer 36: 
1/11/16: The contractor is expected to provide any storage space.  
Question 37:  
	Please clarify whether NYS or Contractor is responsible for procuring spares.
Answer 37: 
1/11/16: NYS is responsible for procuring spares. The Contractor must maintain adequate inventory by region to meet the SLR’s. Prior to commencement of Services, Contractor is required to implement adequate replenishment re-order points, controls and procedures that will provide adequate lead time for ITS to procure, image and deliver equipment and any ITS and/or State chain-of-custody requirements.  For more information refer to section 2.2.2 key element 30.  
Question 38:  
Can the pickup, handoff, and delivery of Equipment and any ITS and/or State chain-of-custody requirements be provided now so as to be evaluated as part of the proposal process?
Answer 38: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 39:  
Item #49 states that baseline for call volumes, document technical environments supported, supported business applications, etc ., will be validated and finalized as part of the Start-Up Period; if these elements wind up being different from those set forth in the RFP, will Contractor be allowed to make adjustments in price and schedule?
Answer 39: 
1/11/16: No.  
Question 40:  
	Are SLA Credits in effect during the stabilization period?
Answer 40: 
1/11/16: No. 
Question 41:  
Will NYS consider alternate SLA requirements such as application of credits on a monthly basis with a monthly cap, and different allocations?
Answer 41: 
1/11/16: No. 
Question 42:  
	Will NYS consider alternate SLA's that meet industry standards?
Answer 42: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 43:  
Will any cancelation under the second paragraph of this section be subject to sub section B, Cause under Section 8.23, Termination?
Answer 43: 
1/11/16: This question is unclear and we do not want to guess at its intent. Can inquiring vendor please rephrase/clarify?
Question 44:  
Please clarify where in the proposal clarifications, additions and exceptions to the RFP terms and conditions, including those of Appendix B, should be included.
Answer 44: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 45:  
Will any Federal funded be used to procure any of the Services under the resultant contract?
Answer 45: 
1/11/16: No.
Question 46:  
How will NYS address cost impacts to Contractor resulting from such suspensions (Section 8.22 of the RFP)?
Answer 46: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 47:  
Will the Emergency Support Services rates (work sheet 3) apply to Contractor's services performed in the event of a declared emergency under this provision?
Answer 47:  
1/11/16:  Yes, the emergency support services are in effect when a task order is issued per RFP section 8.13
Question 48:  
Is there a restriction from utilizing any offshore resources for back office functions?
Answer 48: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 49:  
Does NYS have remote users (example: home based employees) for which require any depot repair services? If yes, does NYS have a location with space available to allocate to provider for depot repairs?
Answer 49: 
1/11/16: Depot repair services are out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 50:  
What Mobile Device Management software suite is used today? (example: Airwatch, MobileIron)
Answer 50: 
1/11/16: MobileIron.
Question 51:  
What tool is used to conduct the end user surveys, and can you provide any details as to the configuration for how often surveys are sent? Example: one per user per month, every ticket, 10% of incidents etc…)
Answer 51: 
1/11/16: 5% of closed incidents are surveyed through ServiceNow.
Question 52:  
Please provide any details on the number of deskside events for during business hours and for which occurred outside normal business hours.
Answer 52: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 53:  
Equipment Storage: Please provide a device list of current hardware in storage including asset information such as Make, Model, Type, Asset Status, and warranty.
Answer 53: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 54:  
Please provide a list of locations in excel format with the number of users and devices by type.
Answer 54: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 55:  
Please provide a hardware asset list which includes location, make, model number, serial number, warranty expiration date, for all supported hardware (Example: laptops, desktops, Thin Clients, printers,)
Answer 55: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 56:  
	Please provide a list of network /server equipment subject to alert monitoring
Answer 56: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 57:  
How many minutes does it take to image a system using your SCCM deployment tool today, and can the imaging be completed unattended?
Answer 57: 
1/11/16:  Imaging is not a vendor responsibility.  ITS standard imaging will be performed by ITS during staging. Broken equipment will be replaced.
Question 58:  
Are laptops / desktops using hard disk encryption? If so, please provide what tool and percentage of devices use full disk encryption.
Answer 58: 
1/11/16: Some customers have encrypted devices. ITS is moving towards BitLocker as the standard encryption tool. 
Question 59:  
	How many catalog items do you have in the ServiceNow Software Catalog?
Answer 59: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 60:  
Of the Software Catalog Request Types, what percentage of them follow an automated workflow for approvals and task completion?
Answer 60: 
1/11/16: Vendor responsibility will be limited to data entry of request.  ITS will fulfill requests.
Question 61:  
Please provide or describe the processes and procedures for major incident management? Is NYS interested in provider offering major incident management services?
Answer 61: 
1/11/16: No, ITS is not seeking proposals for major incident management.  This is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 62:  
Is there an Enterprise architecture diagram of the ITSM platform (ServiceNow) you can provide?
Answer 62: 
1/11/16: This information is available in the public domain.
Question 63:  
It is stated in Appendix U that Time Management module is in use in ITS Production instance. Is ITS using the OOB capabilities of this module or have custom features developed on top specific to business needs?
Answer 63: 
1/11/16: Vendor use of the Time Management module is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 64:  
	Is the HR Management module in ServiceNow being used with OOB features?
Answer 64: 
1/11/16: Vendor use of the HR Management module is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 65:  
Does your current service management configuration of ServiceNow support access via mobile devices?
Answer 65: 
1/11/16: Yes.  
Question 66:  
What are the different types of integrations are there within your existing ServiceNow environment? Can you provide a list of those integrations? Do you need any B2B, B2C integrations?
Answer 66: 
1/11/16: NYS does not require any integrations with respect to this RFP.
Question 67:  
What is your current asset management process? Do you have your end user assets and data center equipment added in your ASSET database?
Answer 67: 
1/11/16: ITS’ current management process is that all assets get tracked in an asset management system.  There is work in progress to add end user assets and data center equipment into the system.  We anticipate that by the start of any resultant contract, this information will be in the ServiceNow asset management module.
Question 68:  
Do you have any restrictions in doing the development work from offshore locations? (By Development work we mean, any design, configuration work where there is no customer data involved)
Answer 68: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 69: 
	How is the event management handled today?
Answer 69: 
1/11/16: Event management is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 70:  
Please provide details on specific security and compliance requirements needed for the ServiceNow solution (i.e. HIPPA, FISMA, FEDRAMP, PCI etc. )
Answer 70: 
1/11/16: Confidential data is not kept in ServiceNow.  
Question 71:  
What is your asset management process for secure sites? Specifically, where technicians are unable to use electronic devices such as mobile phones for checking and updating asset information.
Answer 71: 
1/11/16: Vendors are responsible to maintain asset management information. Asset management process does not have to be completed onsite. 
Question 72:  
What is your current handle time for Level 1 Service Desk Calls? (including wrap up time)
Answer 72: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.  We believe this is an area the successful Bidder can improve upon.
Question 73:  
While the instructions for Attachment 8, Financial Proposal, requires that the pricing include all costs, including transition, will the resultant contract allow for separate pricing for 'fixed' type costs such as transition and program management?
Answer 73: 
1/11/16:  No, the contract will not include separate pricing.   
Question 74:  
Should any Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) be included in the proposed pricing or will the resultant contract include COLA clause ?
Answer 74: 
1/11/16: Bidders must provide fixed monthly per-user pricing for each year of the 5 year contract.  The pricing provided within the Pricing Proposal must include any and all fees, charges, or costs for the duration of the contract.  The RFP does not provide for any annual price escalators.  
Question 75:  
While the Attachment 8, Financial Proposal, only allows for a single unified yearly price based on the given number of O365 end users, will the resultant contract allow for a more typical pricing structure with separate fees for Service Desk and End User Break-Fix Support Services, along with allowing for adjustments in volume?  Would NYS consider a different basis of pricing such as number of incident with applicable ARC/RCC adjustment for changes in the agreed upon baseline?
Answer 75: 
1/11/16:  No, only the pricing in response to Attachment 8, Financial Proposal, will be included in the resultant contract.   
Question 76:  
Will NYS provide a detailed export of incidents including details such as ticket number, categorization, priority/severity, configuration item, open date, resolved date, closed date, and assignment group? If no, can you please provide a ticket count by priority?
Answer 76: 
1/11/16: This data is not available.
Question 77:  
Will NYS please provide further details on Alert monitoring, including further detail related to how alerts are prioritized.
Answer 77: 
1/11/16: The best information available is located in Appendix R. 
Question 78:  
Please provide further definitions and process related to the status of: Silver, Gold, Platinum for Alerts as defined in the "SCOM Monitoring Support Notes" section.
Answer 78: 
1/11/16: Those terms are provided as part of an example procedure. Definition of those terms is not germane to understanding the requirements of this RFP.
Question 79:  
Will NYS please provide the number of staff currently support the Alerts effort today?
Answer 79: 
1/11/16: On Average the daily support entails 6 staff Day shift, 3 staff swing shift and 3 staff for midnight shift. 
Question 80:  
Please clarify where in the financial proposal tables provider should include transition pricing.
Answer 80: 
1//16: Transition costs should be reflected in Service Desk and End User Break-Fix Support Services pricing, Attachment 8, Worksheet 2.   
Question 81:  
Could the State please clarify the number of days the proposal must remain open and valid?  Section 5.12, item o. specifies 120 days and section 5.25 specifies 270 days.
Answer 81: 
1/11/16: 270 days.
Question 82:  
How is the current support handled? Is the current service supported completely through NYS ITS? Are there any support services outsourced?
Answer 82: 
1/11/16: Support is currently handled with a mix of ITS staff and outsourced resources.
Question 83:  
Is there an expectation that the current service support personnel will have the ability to be hired by the chosen vendor?
Answer 83: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 84:  
	Will NYS ITS please consider an extension to the proposal deadline?
Answer 84: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 85:  
Mandatory requirements seem to indicate (if we have interpreted correctly) that a potential contractor must show at least 1 client in Public Sector where we are supporting a user base of at least 50,000. Our current USA service desk supports over 300,000 users and have multiple clients we serve with over 50,000 users each. Our service desk has a group dedicated to Public Sector (we believe the best in the market) that serves approximately 80,000 users, but no one Public Sector client is currently at 50,000 users.  
Question: Based on our above capabilities and volumes, would we still qualify to bid on this opportunity for the Service Desk?
Answer 85: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 86:  
What is the MDM? Platform?  AirWatch? MaaS 360?

Answer 86: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 87:  
Will a list of pre-bid attendees and contacts be sent out after the conference?

Answer 87: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible. 
 Question 88:  
What is the minimum MBE/WBE percentage?

Answer 88: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 89:  
Any extra credit for partnering with blind/handicapped organizations?

Answer 89: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 90:  
What is the award criteria % for technical, MBE/WBE, cost?

Answer 90: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 91:  
Who are the 9 desk incumbents or are they internal?

Answer 91: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 92:  
Will the State/ITS extend the due date?

Answer 92: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 93:  
Appendix L - what does column field average mean?  Is it average call time?

Answer 93: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 94:  
What is the tool used for password reset?

Answer 94: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 95:  
Is there a password reset tool that can be used for all us NY.gov only

Answer 95: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 96:  
Is 90 day startup part of the 5 years?

Answer 96: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 97:  
What are specialty apps & HW?

Answer 97: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 98:  
Are sites with no backup equipment part of priority sites?

Answer 98: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 99:  
Current SLA response asks for 30 seconds.  Industry standard is 45 seconds.  What is the reason for the shortened time?

Answer 99: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 100:  
Is Service Now Cloud based? How mant current users are licensed?

Answer 100: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 101:  
How many and what type of touch labor events are there per year?

Answer 101: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 102:  
Can ITS provide a detailed category breakdown of ticket catagories?

Answer 102: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 103:  
What is the standard VDI platform?

Answer 103: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 104:  
Are user desktops standardized to a particular vendor?

Answer 104: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 105:  
What vendor helped ITS consolodate?

Answer 105: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 106:  
How many vendors supply the services currently? 

Answer 106: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
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